BIZNET BROADCAST 2.2.1

Release Notes

BizNet Broadcast Build 2.2.1 5/5/2015

Copyright Notice

BizNet Software makes no representations or warranties with respect to the contents of this document and specifically disclaims any implied warranties of merchantability or fitness for any particular purpose.

We welcome user comments and reserve the right to revise this publication and to make improvements or changes to the products and programs described in this publication at any time without notice.

Mailing Address:

BizNet Software, Inc. 14785 Preston Rd. Suite 800 Dallas, TX 75254

Phone: 1-888-803-5227

Web Site: http://www.biznetsoftware.com

© Copyright 2015 by BizNet Software®, Inc. All rights reserved.

Printed in the United States of America No part of this publication may be reproduced in any form without the prior written consent of BizNet Software, Inc.

Trademarks

Broadcast is a registered trademark of BizNet Software, Inc. Windows and Microsoft Excel are registered trademarks of Microsoft Corp. All other trademarks are acknowledged.

Table of Contents

TAB	LE OF CON	TENTS	3
1.	BIZNET BE	ROADCAST – FEATURES	4
1	.1. Maj	OR FEATURES	4
	1.1.1.	On-Demand BizBroadcast Launch	4
	1.1.2.	New Licensing and Entitlement Process	4
	1.1.3.	Macro Workbook Support	5
	1.1.4.	Tabbed Parameters User Interface	12
	1.1.5.	Distribute Excel Custom Views	13
	1.1.6.	WIX Installer and Changes to the Installation and Admin Path	15
1	.2. Min	OR FEATURES	15
	1.2.1.	PDF Password Protect	15
	1.2.2.	Microsoft Outlook Global Address Support	16
	1.2.3.	New Render Format XML	16
	1.2.4.	New Help and Buy Now Ribbon Buttons	17
2.	BIZNET BE	ROADCAST – ENHANCEMENTS	
	2.1.1.	Notification of Missed Scheduled Distribution Rows	
	2.1.2.	Scheduler 'Run Once' Selection	
	2.1.3.	Excel 2013 Support Improvements	
	2.1.4.	Merge Files with Wildcard	18
3.	BIZNET BE	ROADCAST – BUG FIXES	19
	3.1.1.	Selection windows field type is normalized for easier view	
	3.1.2.	The additional optional parameter refreshes properly	19
	3.1.3.	Excel distribution workbooks contain Chart Sheets	19
	3.1.4.	Merge files that contain chart objects issue	19
	3.1.5.	Scheduler time from 12AM to 12:59AM distributed incorrectly	19
	3.1.6.	Hide trial expiration information when Broadcast has been activated	19
	3.1.7.	PDF merge creates an extra sub-level bookmark header	19
	3.1.8.	Attachment for email address	19
	3.1.9.	Merge file feature fixes	19
4.	BIZNET BE	ROADCAST – KNOWN ISSUES	20
5.	APPENDI	(22

1. BizNet Broadcast – Features

1.1. Major Features

1.1.1. On-Demand BizBroadcast Launch

Users are required to click the new "Load Broadcast" ribbon button in order to load Broadcast in Excel. When Broadcast loads successfully, the load button disappears and the grayed-out ribbon buttons become active.



1.1.2. New Licensing and Entitlement Process

The new BizBroadcast license model changes from importing a license file to requiring an Activation ID to complete the product licensing cycle. Users are required to have an Activation ID to activate the product build 2.2 and later. Questions regarding activation and product licensing can be answered at: <u>http://www.biznetsoftware.com/</u>

How to Activate a Product

1. Click 'Activate License' ribbon button.



- 2. Enter the Activation ID in the available field.
- 3. Click 'Activate ID(s)' button.
- 4. A successful message appears and the product is fully activated.

🕹 LicenseActiva	ton – 🗆 🗙
Basic Advanced	
	Activate ID(s)
	Add Clear All
Online Deactivation	
Deactivate the current activation.	
	Close

How to view your Device ID

1. Click the 'About' ribbon button.



2. In the description field, the Device ID is displayed.

<i>©</i>	About BizBroadcast	×
BizBroadcast [™]	BizBroadcast Version 2.2.0.0 1997-2015 BizNet Software, Inc. BizNet Software, Inc.	
BizNet software	Trial Expires: 2/27/2015 The Device ID is	<

1.1.3. Macro Workbook Support

Users often employ macros to automate frequently-used tasks in workbooks and distribute workbooks to other users. Broadcast supports macro-enabled workbook in following settings:

- 1.) Automatically execute macros and deliver macros-enabled workbooks.
- 2.) Prevent Excel prompting to delete sheets during distribution and when Broadcast Scheduler is activated.

3.) Distribute macro-enabled workbook (.xlsm) that supports preserved formulas and Additional Optional parameters. RenderFormat XLSM with MergeFiles is not supported.

Requirements

- 1. The distribution template must be saved in a macro-enabled workbook. (.xlsm)
- 2. Broadcast request access in Microsoft Trust Center to execute macros and deliver macroenabled workbooks. This is a security control to allow access for applications to automate and programmatically manipulate the Microsoft Visual Basic for Applications (VBA) environment and object model in an Excel workbook.

Excel -	Trust	Center >	Trust	Center	Settings >	Macro	Settings
---------	-------	----------	-------	--------	------------	-------	----------

	Trust Center ?		×
Trusted Publishers	Macro Settings		
Trusted Locations Trusted Documents Trusted App Catalogs Add-ins	 Disable all macros without notification Disable all macros with notification Disable all macros except digitally signed macros Enable all macros (not recommended; potentially dangerous code can rur 	1)	
ActiveX Settings	Developer Macro Settings		
Macro Settings Protected View Message Bar External Content File Block Settings Privacy Options	✓ Trust access to the <u>V</u> BA project object model		
	OK Ca	ance	2

*Macro settings are located in the Trust Center. However, if you work in an organization, the system administrator might have changed the default settings to prevent anyone from changing settings.

Review enabling macros from Microsoft Office: <u>http://office.microsoft.com/en-us/help/enable-or-disable-macros-in-office-documents-</u> <u>HA010031071.aspx'</u>

- 3. Macros are required to be saved in the workbook. Macros stored in a user's Excel personal.xlsb are not supported.
- 4. Macros contained in a workbook are required to be written in the module object instead of the worksheet object. The quickest way to view macros in a VBA project is to press, 'Alt+F11'. When trust access to the VBA project is selected, all recorded macros are defaulted into the module object; however, legacy or custom macros will require to be

recorded or rewritten into the module object if Broadcast is to be utilized. Please reference the <u>Known Issues</u> for further details.

Example of a macro in the module object

2	Microsoft V
File Edit View Insert Format Debug Run Noroject VBAProject X A Y I I Image: State of the stat	<pre>Iools Add-Ins Window Help Book1 - Module1 (Code) General) General) Sub Test1 () ' Test1 Macro ' test ' Range ("B7").Select ActiveCell.FormulaR1C1 = "Hello" Range ("B8").Select End Sub</pre>
Properties - Module1	1
Module1 Module V Alphabetic Categorized (Name) Module1	▼ ▼ ∃≣ <

Example of a macro not located in the module object

2	Microsoft Visual Basic for Applicati	ons - Book
<u>File Edit View Insert Format Debug</u>	Run Tools Add-Ins Window Help	
Project - V/PAProject		
	😂 Book1 - Sheet1 (Code) 🗖	
	Worksheet v Calculate	~
WBAProject (Book1)	Private Sub Worksheet_Calculate()	•
ThisWorkbook	End Sub	
⊡ 🤐 Modules	Private Sub Worksheet_Change(ByVal Target As Range)	
	End Sub	
	Private Sub Worksheet_SelectionChange(ByVal Target As Range)	
	End Sub	
Properties - Sheet1 X		>
Sheet1 Worksheet		
Alphabetic Categorized		
(Name) Sheet1		
DisplayPageBreaks False		

5. Macros range commands must include Excel worksheet reference. A worksheet reference is a cell reference which includes a worksheet name. Depending on the structure of the macro, worksheets referenced may also need to be included in the distribution output file.

Example: Range(Sheet1!A7)	is written using the full	worksheet reference
, ,	0	

1	4						
	(0	General)				
		Sub	test1()				
			Range("Sheet1!A7"). Range("Sheet1!A9").				
		End	Sub				

How to Select Macros with Broadcast

1. Select 'Macros' in the Additional Optional Parameters

		Additi	onal Optio	nal Param	eters
Macros					

2. Double-click the cell field under the Macros header.

<i>©</i>	Macro Selection Fo	orm – 🗆 🗙
Select a Macro		Selected Macros
Module1.Test1	Choose Directive	
	Add	
	Remove	
	Insert	
	Close	
1		

- 3. Select a macro. (The list automatically detects macros stored in the workbook)
- 4. Select a directive and click the 'Add' button
 - [PRE] macros are executed before the Excel calculation
 - [POST] macros are executed after the Excel calculation
- 5. Click 'Insert' button
- 6. All selected macros are listed with directives

	Additional Optional Parameters
Macros	
[PRE]Module1.Test1	

Using Scheduler with macro-enabled workbooks

1. After selecting the schedule frequency, click the 'Save as Schedule File' button to save the schedule.

	Application Settings	
-	Scheduler Polling Interval 1 Minutes	
	Scheduler File Path C:\BizBroadcast\	
	Manage Scheduled Files Save as Schedule File OK Cancel	
		_

2. In the Save As menu, select the Save as type drop-down menu and save the schedule as xlsm format.

		Save As					
🔄 🦻 – ↑ 🚺	() → ↑ ↓ → This PC → Local Disk (C:) → BizBroadcast ✓ C Search BizBroadcast						
Organize 🔻 Ne	w folder					0	
 ★ Favorites ■ Desktop Downloads Secent places Nomegroup This PC 	Name bin Distribution List Template Distribution List Template	Date modified 1/28/2015 2:09 PM 1/28/2015 11:23 AM 1/29/2015 10:36 AM	Type File folder Microsoft Excel W Microsoft Excel W	Size 90 KB 13 KB			
辑 Network							
File name:						*	
Save as type:	*.xlsx files (*.xlsx)					~	
	.xlsx files (.xlsx) *.xlsm files (*.xlsm)						
Hide Folders	All files (*.*)						

*The scheduled file must be saved as xlsm to distribute a macro-enabled workbook. Macros will fail to execute if xlsx is selected.

Macro Workbook Scenarios

1. User wants to send a macro-enabled workbook to another user. The source workbook that contains the distribution template **MUST** be an xlsm workbook.

RenderFormat	MergeFiles	Result
XLSM	No	Macros are executed and delivered into the xlsm output file

2. User wants to merge a macro-enabled workbook and send to another user. Broadcast does not support a distribution row that has a RenderFormat – XLSM combined with MergeFiles parameter. The final result would require additional distribution rows and the macros will not be carried over in the output file. The source workbook that contains the distribution template **MUST** be an xlsm workbook.

RenderFormat	MergeFiles	Result
1. XLSM	No	Macros are executed and delivered into the XLSM output file
2. XLSM	No	Macros are executed and delivered into the XLSM output file
3. XLSX	Merge the two XLSM output files	Previous macro workbooks have been executed. XLSX output file does not contain macros.

1.1.4. Tabbed Parameters User Interface

User defined parameters, as known as tabbed parameters, are used to substitute multiple values during distribution in order to automatically generate the various combinations for the output files. In previous builds, users were required to manually type in the multiple values and separating the values with a pipe '|'. A prerequisite for utilizing the new user interface is that the user must create all named ranges in the report before using the tabbed parameters. Double-click the empty cell field after a named range column has been selected (i.e. test) and the new tabbed parameter user interface will pop-out to select values.

Additional Optional Parameters					
test					

Users have two options to select the multiple values. Insert Named Range will insert the name of the selected named range. This method is beneficial and allows the report to be dynamic and scalable as values in the named range grows. Insert Parameters will insert the values selected and separated by a pipe. This method is beneficial to view the displayed values and enables a user to distribute confidential reports to the appropriate viewers.

Tabbed	Parameters – 🗆 🗙
Select a Named Range company	Select tabbed parameters Select All ABC Xr2 LLC
Insert Named Range	Insert Parameters Close

Insert Named Range button result



Insert Parameters button result

test
ABC EFG XYZ

'Select All' option is available

Select tabbed parameters	
Select All ABC XYZ LLC	Insert Parameters

*When 'Select All' is selected, the 'Insert Parameters' button will become disabled. For best report building practices, referencing a Named Range is advantageous over a list of values.

1.1.5. Distribute Excel Custom Views

Excel custom views allow you save a specific display setting for a worksheet and apply changes when needed. A user can make changes to the worksheet display so that the worksheet window appears exactly as the user wants it to appear each time the user selects the view. Display settings can be altered such as column widths, row heights, hidden rows and columns, cell selections, filter settings, and window settings. Print settings can be altered such as page settings, margins, headers and footers, and sheet settings.

The newest build can distribute reports with custom views with a few requirements:

- Custom views with tabbed parameters (user defined parameters) does not work with multiple tabbed parameters or multiple substitution values.
- Custom views can only be selected from the distribution workbook and in the scenario of merging workbooks, Broadcast is unable to detect custom views from other workbooks.
- Excel's custom views are only supported in XLS, XLSVALUES, XLSX, XLSXVALUES, XLSM, XLSMVALUES or PDF formats. The excluded formats cannot apply Excel's custom view feature.
- If any worksheet in the workbook contains an Excel table, the Custom Views command on the ribbon button will be disable. Broadcast will detect the custom view; however, the custom view will not be applied during distribution.

https://support.office.com/en-ie/article/Create-apply-or-delete-a-custom-view-ce722bf9-0b4a-49a5-94ba-438fde18fc2b

Excel Ribbon Button > View > Custom Views

				✓ Ruler	🗹 Formula Bar	
Normal	Page Break Preview	Page Layout	Custom Views	✓ Gridlines	✓ Headings	
Workbook Views				0	show	
D14 - :			Custom Views Save your current display and print settings as a custom view that you			
						1

	Custom Views	? ×
Vie <u>w</u> s:		
ABC	^	<u>S</u> how
		<u>C</u> lose
		<u>A</u> dd
	~	<u>D</u> elete

Broadcast Sheet Selection Menu - Select a Custom View in the drop-down list

0	Broadcast Sheet Selection	
Select A Worksheet(s)		Selected Worksheet(s)
Sheet4	Select a Directive Type	Sheet1
	Select a Custom View (Optional)	

1.1.6. WIX Installer and Changes to the Installation and Admin Path

Broadcast is packaged with a newer Windows installation package called WIX installer. The benefits include a single installation file that installs on all supported versions of Excel and special installation environments.

🌗 🕨	This PC → Local	Disk (C:) → Users → Da	n → AppData → Local →
	Name	<u>^</u>	Date modified
]] Add-in_	Express_Ltd	3/23/2015 6:50 P
s	퉬 assembl	у	3/23/2015 5:52 PI
ices	퉬 BizBroad	lcast	3/23/2015 6:52 PI

Administration Path:	
C:\Users\Dan\AppData\Local\BizBroadcast	
This is the location of the default distribution template used when selecting the or Distribution Template".	ption "New

1.2. Minor Features

1.2.1. PDF Password Protect

Password protecting pdf documents is now available in Broadcast. In the Distribution template, select 'Password' in the Additional Optional parameters and set a password for the pdf document. Click 'Run Now' and the pdf file is password protected.

BizBroadcast Distribution List						
Required	At least or	ne required				
RenderFormat	Path	EmailTo	EmailSubject	Selection	FileName	Password
PDF	C:\Broadcast			[VIEW:ABC]Sheet1	test1	******
PDF	C:\Broadcast			[VIEW:XYZ][PW:test]Sheet1	test2	******

*In the Selection menu, if a worksheet is password protected, Broadcast does not apply the worksheet password into the pdf; only the Password column in Additional Optional parameters sets the password for the pdf.

Adobe	Reader' XI	Adobe
	Password	×
<u>^</u>	'test1.PDF' is protected. Please enter a Document Open Password. Enter Password: OK Cancel	

1.2.2. Microsoft Outlook Global Address Support

Broadcast examines Microsoft Outlook's Global Address List (GAL) through the Microsoft Exchange Server account. The GAL contains the names and e-mail addresses of everyone in the organization. Double-click the EmailTo cell field to activate the feature.

e.	Select Email Address	×
Select the Address List	Pick Receiving Email Addresses	
Contacts		
Email Address Selection	Add to selection	
		~ ~
	Insert Reset Car	icel

1.2.3. New Render Format XML

Extensible Markup Language (XML) is a markup language that defines a set of rules for encoding documents in a format which is both human-readable and machine-readable.

Broadcast produces XML files as unmapped elements:

- XML data files (.xml), which contain the custom tags and structured data.
- XML schema file (.xsd) and Extensible Stylesheet Language Transformation (.xslt) is not currently supported in Broadcast.

BroadcastRenderFormats
PDF
XPS
XLSX
XLSXVALUES
XLSM
XLSMVALUES
XLS
XLSVALUES
MHTML
HTML
CSV
XML

1.2.4. New Help and Buy Now Ribbon Buttons



The Help icon opens to a direct link to BizNet Software help online documentation. The Buy Now button directs customers to purchase the product online. When the product is successfully activated, the Buy Now button disappears from the ribbon button.

2. BizNet Broadcast – Enhancements

2.1.1. Notification of Missed Scheduled Distribution Rows

After distribution completes, a message box contains information for unprocessed rows or errors. The About box logs the detailed message.

2.1.2. Scheduler 'Run Once' Selection

Users are able to use the Scheduler menu to schedule a distribution to run once. Select 'Run Once' in the Frequency section and set a time.

	Scheduler – 🗖 🗙					
Frequency C Hour C Day C Week C Month C Run Once	Schedule Details Run Once Start time: 04 : 15 • A.M. O P.M.					
	Begin schedule on or after: Tuesday , March 24, 2015 💌					
Application Settings	L					
Scheduler Polling Interval 5 Minutes						
Scheduler File Path C:\Users\Dan\AppData\Local\BizBroadcast						
Manage Scheduled	Files Save as Schedule File OK Cancel					

2.1.3. Excel 2013 Support Improvements

Add-in express 7.2 and higher is used for Excel 2013 Broadcast builds.

2.1.4. Merge Files with Wildcard

Additional Optional parameter, Merge Files, includes a new Select Folder button for the user to use a wildcard as a "select all" for the render format type. Only XLSX and PDF format can be used. For example, user selects PDF render format type, Select Folder button in the Merge Files, then the output value will be the location path *.pdf (i.e. C:\BizBroadcast\FilesToMerge*.pdf) All other documents contained in the folder that is not pdf will be ignored by Broadcast.

3. BizNet Broadcast – Bug Fixes

- **3.1.1.** Selection windows field type is normalized for easier view Selection menu is better viewed in environments with zoom enabled.
- **3.1.2.** The additional optional parameter refreshes properly Updates to refreshing the Additional Optional parameter headers and columns
- **3.1.3.** Excel distribution workbooks contain Chart Sheets Charts Sheets were automatically hidden and included in the distribution of a workbook. Broadcast does not support chart sheets.
- **3.1.4.** Merge files that contain chart objects issue During distribution, users will continually be prompted to save a temporary workbook when merging of xlsx files and contains chart objects. The distribution workbook containing chart objects are not affected.

3.1.5. Scheduler time from 12AM to 12:59AM distributed incorrectly

When Scheduler time duration was set for a time between 12am and 12:59am, the reports would distributed in PM instead of AM.

3.1.6. Hide trial expiration information when Broadcast has been activated

Trial expiration information will been hidden when Broadcast has been successfully activated.

Ø	About BizBroadcast
BizBroadcast [®]	BizBroadcast Version 2.2.0.0 1997-2012 BizNet Software, Inc. BizNet Software, Inc.
BizNet software*	Trial Expires: 2/21/2015 Licensed to: Not Licensed! License Expires: Unlicensed PC\Dan is authorized with Standard access rights

3.1.7. PDF merge creates an extra sub-level bookmark header

Users merging PDF files may have experienced an extra Page 1 sub-level bookmark in the merged pdf output file.

3.1.8. Attachment for email address

Users experienced an issue in the Attachment parameter if only one attachment was selected. Two or more attachments were required to be selected.

3.1.9. Merge file feature fixes

Resolved issues with saving dialog prompts during distribution and merge selection with blank render formats.

4. BizNet Broadcast – Known Issues

- 1. When errors are prompted during Broadcast processing, reference the About box for further details on the issue.
- 2. Reference error can occur in any workbooks. If cell referencing is used in the Distribution Template and the reference is broken or missing, Broadcast processing may return a #REF! error in the Excel ID: -2146826265 in the file or filename.
- 3. When users save a Broadcast distribution template in xltx (xlt format is unsupported) and add a new node in BizInsight to drag and drop the workbook as a template, Broadcast cannot process the drag and drop distribution template inside the workbook template. The drag and drop method in BizInsight creates a temporary workbook file which cannot be processed for multiple iterations by Broadcast.

Workaround:

A. If the drag and drop method is used, save the Distribution template in only xlsx format for Broadcast to process. The newly created workbook will need to be saved on the local machine for Broadcast to distribute multiple times.

B. In Excel, open the workbook template separately and click the Run Now button to process the Broadcast distribution template.

4. When users save a Broadcast Distribution template with a workbook containing dynamic analysis sets (see screenshot blow) and the user attempts to distribute using Broadcast, Broadcast will prompt to the user save the workbook and fail to distribute after the first time. Excel workbooks that are dragged and down from BizInsight are created as a temporary file on the local machine. Broadcast is unable to recognize a temporary file. The workaround for the drag and drop feature in BizInsight is to save Broadcast Distribution templates in only xlsx format and save the newly created workbook on the local machine for Broadcast to distribute multiple times.

Parameters		\$ ×
Parameter <u>n</u> ame:	How parameter value is obtaine	d:
RDLName RDLLocation UserID Password PK Expiration DataSetFilter	Prompt for value using the Use the following value:	following string:
	 Get the value from the foll Sheet1!\$J\$4 	owing cell:
	Refresh automatically v	vhen cell value changes K Cancel

- 5. Macros are recorded in a VBA module object or as VBA procedures referencing a worksheet object. If a macro references a worksheet object instead of the module, Excel's worksheet event will trigger and Excel will automatically execute the macro. This becomes performance issue during Broadcast macro distribution. Broadcast will first instruct the macro to run during the refresh phase, then macro will be triggered to run again due to the worksheet change event in Excel. In total, the macro will be ran twice during a Broadcast distribution.
- 6. Microsoft Outlook automatically checks for anti-virus programs installed in the operating system. If anti-virus is not detected and when Broadcast distributes to emails addresses using Outlook, Outlook security will force a security prompt for each distribution row. The available resolution is to install an anti-virus program in the operating system.

	Microsoft Outlook	×				
1	A program is trying to send an e-mail message on your behalf. If this is unexpected, click Deny and verify your antivirus software is up-to-date. For more information about e-mail safety and how you might be able to avoid getting this warning, click Help.					
	Allow Deny Help	•				

7. Excel 2007 contains unsupported icons for Check for Updates and Buy Now ribbon buttons.

Run	New Distribution	Application Settings	Email Settings	Set	Scheduler	? Activate	Check for Updates Help About	Buy
NOW	rempiace	secongs	secongs	schedule	START		ing Hoode	NOW
BizBroadcast Report Distribution and Scheduling								

5. Appendix

Preserve and No Preserve Process Order

- 1. RenderFormat: XLSX or XLSXVALUES
- 2. Preserve formula is enabled or disable (Application Setting). Formula list contains values.
- 3. Preserve or No Preserve is used in the Selection column
- 4. Merge is or is not selected in the Additional Optional Parameters

RenderFormat: XLSX

			[CONTENT]	
				Alternative
		Preserve	No Preserve	Directive
				Only formulas
g	Preserve		Worksheet	listed by the user
ttir	Formula		contains all	are preserved. All
Se	Enabled	N/A	formulas.	else values.
tion		Only formulas		
ica		listed by the		
ppl	Preserve	user are		
A	Formula	preserved. All		
	Disabled	else values.	N/A	No changes

			[CONTENT]		Merge File Parameter
				Alternative	
		Preserve	No Preserve	Directive	
				Only formulas	
60	Preserve		Worksheet	listed by the user	All merged
tti	Formula		contains all	are preserved. All	workbooks contain
Set	Enabled	N/A	formulas.	else values.	all formulas
cation		Only formulas			
pplid	Preserve	user are			
∢	Formula	preserved. All			All merged workbooks
	Disabled	else values.	N/A	No changes	contain all formulas

RenderFormat: XLSXVALUES

		[CONTENT]						
				Alternative				
		Preserve	No Preserve	Directive				
ing	Preserve							
ett	Formula							
Ū.	Enabled	Do Not Use	Do Not Use	No changes				
Ei.								
cat	Preserve							
ild	Formula							
Ą	Disabled	Do Not Use	Do Not Use	No changes				

			Merge File Parameter		
				Alternative	
		Preserve	No Preserve	Directive	
ing	Preserve				
etti	Formula				All merged workbooks
л N	Enabled	Do Not Use	Do Not Use	No changes	contain all values.
plicatio	Preserve Formula				All merged workbooks
Ap	Disabled	Do Not Use	Do Not Use	No changes	contain all values.